
 

 

This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters 
discussed during Agenda Item #7 – Special Presentations and Reports. If a member of the public wishes to speak at 
this time, Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 
 

This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters of 
interest within the jurisdiction of the District that are not listed on the agenda.  If a member of the public wishes to speak 
at this time, Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 
 

Notice of Regular Meeting 
Oceano Community Services District - Board of Directors Agenda 

WEDNESDAY, April 25, 2018 – 5:30 P.M. 
Oceano Community Services District Board Room 

1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA 

All items on the agenda including information items, may be deliberated. Any member of the public with an interest in 
one of these items should review the background material and request information on the possible action that could 
be taken. 
 

All persons desiring to speak during any Public Comment period are asked to fill out a “Board Appearance Form” to 
submit to the General Manager prior to the start of the meeting. Each individual speaker is limited to a presentation 
time of THREE (3) minutes per item. Persons wishing to speak on more than one item shall limit his/her remarks to a 
total of SIX (6) minutes. This time may be allocated between items in one minute increments up to three minutes. 
Time limits may not be yielded to or shared with other speakers. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:    
2. ROLL CALL: 
3. FLAG SALUTE: 
4. AGENDA REVIEW: 
5. CLOSED SESSION:  

 

A. Pursuant to Government Code §54957: Performance evaluation – General Manager 
 

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: (NOT BEGINNING BEFORE 6:00 PM) 

7. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS:  
A. STAFF REPORTS: 

i. Operations - Field Supervisor Tony Marraccino  
ii. FCFA Operations - Chief Steve Lieberman 
iii. OCSD General Manager – Paavo Ogren 
iv. Sheriff’s South Station - Commander Stuart MacDonald  

 

B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OUTSIDE COMMITTEE REPORTS: 
i. Director Angello 

ii. Director Brunet 
iii. President White 
iv. Vice President Austin 
v. Director Coalwell 

 
C. PUBLIC COMMENT ON SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS: 

 
 

This agenda was prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2. Agenda is posted at the Oceano 
Community Services District, 1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA.  Agenda and reports can be accessed and downloaded from the 
Oceano Community Services District website at www.oceanocsd.org   
ASSISTANCE FOR THE DISABLED If you are disabled in any way and need accommodation to participate in the Board 
meeting, please call the Clerk of the Board at (805) 481-6730 for assistance at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting 
so necessary arrangements can be made. 

 
April 25, 2018 - Page 1 of 73 

http://www.oceanocsd.org/


 

 
Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on consent agenda items may do so when 
recognized by the Presiding Officer.  To facilitate public comment we request persons wishing to speak to fill out a 
speak request form and give it to the General Manager.  Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 

Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on public hearing items may do so when 
recognized by the Presiding Officer.  To facilitate public comment we request persons wishing to speak to fill out a 
speak request form and give it to the General Manager.  Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 

ASISTENCIA A DISCAPACITADO Si usted está incapacitado de ninguna manera y necesita alojamiento para participar en la 
reunión de la Junta, por favor llame a la Secretaría de la Junta al (805) 481-6730 para recibir asistencia por lo menos tres (3) 
días antes de la reunión para que los arreglos necesarios puedan ser hechos.  

8. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 

 
A. Review and Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting on April 11, 2018 

 

B. Review and Approval of Minutes for the Special Meeting on April 19, 2018 
 

C. Review and Approval of Cash Disbursements 
 

D. Submittal of the District’s Fiscal Year 2017-18 Quarter 3 Treasurer Report 
 

 

9. BUSINESS ITEMS:  

   
A. Review and discussion of 2018 Committee Assignments with modifications as deemed appropriate 

 

B. Consideration of a Recommendation to approve a resolution Directing Approval of the Five Cities Fire 
Authority Budget for Fiscal year 2018/19, and discussion of related issues. 
 

C. Consideration of a Recommendation to Approve a Resolution by a 4/5ths vote Delegating to the 
General Manager the Authority to Take Emergency Action to Replace the Oceano Lagoon Waterline 
between Maui Circle and Utah Avenue in accordance with Public Contract Code 22050 

D. Submittal for approval a Resolution authorizing the General Manager to execute intent to serve letters 
to new customers   
 
 

10. HEARING ITEMS:   
 

11. RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:  
 

12. LATE RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:    
 

13. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: District Policies Continued; update, Roles and Responsibilities with Related 
Agencies; Construction Documents, Five Cities Fire Authority 5, District Rules and Regulations, Seabreeze 
Mobile Home Park Continued  
 

14. FUTURE HEARING ITEMS:  
 

15. ADJOURNMENT:  
 

 

April 25, 2018 - Page 2 of 73 



Oceano Community Services District 
Summary Minutes 

Regular Meeting Wednesday, April 11, 2018 – 5:30 P.M. 
Oceano Community Services District Board Room 

1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA 

1. CALL TO ORDER: at 5:30 p.m. by President White
2. FLAG SALUTE: led by President White
3. ROLL CALL:  All Board members present. Also present, General Manager Paavo Ogren, District Legal

Counsel Jeff Minnery, Business and Accounting Manager Carey Casciola, and Board Secretary Celia Ruiz.
4. AGENDA REVIEW: Agenda approved as presented.
5. CLOSED SESSION: was entered at approximately 5:35pm. Open session was resumed at approximate

6:02pm
No public comment
A. Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6: Conference with Labor Negotiators. Agency designated

representative: General Manager, Paavo Ogren; Employee Organizations: a) Service Employees
International Union 620 b) Unrepresented Management Positions 

No reportable Action

6. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA (NOT BEGINNING BEFORE 6:00 PM):
Public comment was received by Patty Welsh, Cynthia Replogle, and Sherly Gibson who provided a letter

written by Director Brunet.
7. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS:

a. STAFF REPORTS:
i. Operations - Field Supervisor Tony Marraccino – Field Supervisor Marraccino reported on 15

USA’s, 8 work orders, 8 customer service calls, daily rounds, samples, Pier & Air Park line
break, 1 SSO spill of 20 gallons was reported, and valve turning.

ii. FCFA - Chief Steve Lieberman – None
iii. OCSD General Manager – General Manager Ogren reported on FCFA & City Managers

Meeting.
iv. Sheriff’s South Station – Commander Stuart McDonald – None

b. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OUTSIDE COMMITTEE REPORTS:
i. Director Angello – None

ii. Director Brunet – None
iii. President White – None
iv. Vice President Austin – reported on SSLOCSD
v. Director Coalwell – reported on WRAC

c. PUBLIC COMMENT ON SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS:
Public comment was received by Patty Welsh.

Agenda Item 8AApril 25, 2018 - Page 3 of 73 



 
 
 
 
8 CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION: 

a. Review and Approval of Minutes for the Regular 
Meeting on March 14, 2018 
 

b. Review and Approval of Minutes for the Regular 
Meeting on March 28, 2018 
 

c. Review and Approval of Cash Disbursements 
 

d. Submittal for approval an Intent to Serve Letter to 
Arnaldo Gomez; 2251 La Verne St.; Assessor’s 
Parcel No. 062-068-012 

 

After an opportunity for public comment and brief Board 
discussion, staff recommendations were approved with a 
modification to Item 8c to increase the total disbursements 
to $ 75,060.52 with the attached warrants with a motion 
from Vice President Austin, a second by Director Coalwell 
and a 5-0 vote.  
Director Brunet abstained from Item 8a.  
No public comment.  

 
9 A BUSINESS ITEM: ACTION: 
Approval of a Recommendation to Set May 16, 2018 as 
the Application Deadline for Fireworks Permits 
 

After an opportunity for public comment and brief Board 
discussion, staff recommendations were approved with a 
motion from Director Coalwell, a second by Director 
Brunet and a 5-0 vote. Staff also indicated they would 
work on options to help ensure fireworks are cleaned up 
on July 5th.  
Public comment was received by Cynthia Replogle. 

 
9 B BUSINESS ITEM: ACTION: 
Review of the District’s Budget Status as of March 31, 
2018 
 

After an opportunity for public comment and brief Board 
discussion, no action. 
No public comment. 

 
9 C BUSINESS ITEM: ACTION: 
Review and discuss annual adjustments to water 
charges pursuant to Ordinance 2015-01 and 
consideration of decreasing post-drought consumption 
charges. 
 

After an opportunity for public comment and brief Board 
discussion, no action taken.  
No public comment. 

 
Board recessed between 7:00-7:10 pm  
 
Vice President Austin was feeling ill and left meeting 
 
9 D BUSINESS ITEM: ACTION: 
Update on the Lagoon waterline break and emergency 
efforts with Board direction as deemed appropriate. 
 

After an opportunity for public comment and brief Board 
discussion, no action taken.  
No public comment. 

 
9 E BUSINESS ITEM: ACTION: 
Consideration of Ballot and Voting for the San Luis 
Obispo County Local Agency Formation Commission 
Alternate Special District Member Representative 
 

After an opportunity for public comment and brief Board 
discussion, the Board selected Ed Eby for the LAFCo 
Special District Member Representative with a motion 
from President White, a second by Director Angello and a 
4-0 vote.   
No public comment. 

 
 

Agenda Item 8AApril 25, 2018 - Page 4 of 73 



 
 
 
 
 
 
10 HEARING ITEM: ACTION: 
A Public Hearing to consider bids received for the 
District's permanent utility relocation work required by the 
County of San Luis Obispo for the Airpark Bridge 
Replacement Project and Board approval to perform the 
work among options that include utilizing the County 
contractor(s), awarding the work to the District's low 
bidder, or adopting a resolution, which must be approved 
by a 4/5ths vote, to reject all bids and to perform the 
work with District employees as allowed by California 
Public Contract Code Section 22038; with an associated 
budget adjustments up to $125,000.   
 

After an opportunity for public comment and brief Board 
discussion, a motion to continue item within 7 days of 
receiving notice from San Luis Obispo County informing 
the District of the lowest bidder with a motion from 
Director Coalwell, a second by Director Angello and a 4-0 
vote.  
No public comment. 

 
11.     RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: FCFA facebook postings & WSC Central Coast Blue  
 
12.     LATE RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: None 
 
13.     FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: District Policies Continued; Regional Groundwater Sustainability Project (RGSP) 
update, Roles and Responsibilities with Related Agencies; Emergency Generator, Construction Documents, Five 
Cities Fire Authority 5 Year Strategic Plan, Sea Breeze Mobile Home Park Continued  
 
14.     FUTURE HEARING ITEMS: None 
 

  15.     ADJOURNMENT: at approximately 8:30 pm  
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8AApril 25, 2018 - Page 5 of 73 



Agenda Item 8A April 25, 2018 - Page 6 of 73 



Agenda Item 8A April 25, 2018 - Page 7 of 73 



Agenda Item 8A April 25, 2018 - Page 8 of 73 



Oceano Community Services District 
Summary Minutes 

Special Meeting Thursday, April 19, 2018 – 4:00 P.M. 
Oceano Community Services District Board Room 

1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA 

1. CALL TO ORDER: at 4:00 p.m. by President White
2. FLAG SALUTE: led by President White
3. ROLL CALL:  All Board members present. Also present, General Manager Paavo Ogren, District Legal

Counsel Jeff Minnery, Business and Accounting Manager Carey Casciola, and Board Secretary Celia Ruiz.
4. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA:

No public comment.
5. CLOSED SESSION: None

7. ADJOURNMENT: at approximately 4:15 pm

6 HEARING ITEMS: ACTION: 
Continuance of Board Meeting April 11, 2018 Public 
Hearing Item 10     

A Public Hearing to consider bids received for 
the District's permanent utility relocation work required by 
the County of San Luis Obispo for the Airpark Bridge 
Replacement Project and Board approval to perform the 
work among options that include utilizing the County 
contractor(s), awarding the work to the District's low 
bidder, or adopting a resolution, which must be approved 
by a 4/5ths vote, to reject all bids and to perform the 
work with District employees as allowed by California 
Public Contract Code Section 22038; with an associated 
budget adjustments up to $125,000.   

After an opportunity for public comment and brief Board 
discussion, a resolution rejecting bids for the Airpark Drive 
Utility Relocation Project (No.2018-01) with finding that the 
project can be performed more economically by 
employees of the District and other related actions, were 
approved with modifications to the resolution to correct the 
bid opening date as April 5, 2018 and approval of April 
19th, 2018 with a motion from Director Brunet, a second by 
Director Angello and a 5-0 roll call vote.  
No public comment.  

Agenda Item 8BApril 25, 2018 - Page 9 of 73 



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

Date: April 25, 2018 

To:  Board of Directors 

From: Carey Casciola, Business and Accounting Manager 

Subject: Agenda Item #8(C):  Recommendation to Approve Cash Disbursements 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board approve the attached cash disbursements. 

Discussion 

The following is a summary of the attached cash disbursements: 

Description Check Sequence* Amounts 
56914 - 56937 

Disbursements Requiring Board Approval prior to Payment: 

   Regular Payable Register – paid 04/25/2018 56922 - 56937 $38,215.23 

Subtotal: $38,215.23 
Reoccurring Payments for Board Review (authorized by Resolution 2016-07): 

   Payroll Disbursements – pay period ending N/A $27,349.30 
   Reoccurring Utility Disbursements – paid 04/11/2018 56914 - 56919 $6,661.70 
   Reoccurring Health/Benefits – paid 04/11/2018 56920 - 56921 $201.03 

Subtotal: $34,212.03 
Grand Total: $72,427.26 

Other Agency Involvement: n/a 

Other Financial Considerations:  Amounts are within the authorized Fund level budgets. 

Results 

The Board’s review of cash disbursements is an integral component of the District’s system of internal controls 
and promotes a well governed community.   

Agenda Item 8CApril 25, 2018 - Page 10 of 73 



 4/20/2018  8:44 AM CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER PAGE:   1

COMPANY:  99  - POOLED CASH FUND CHECK DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

ACCOUNT:  1-1001-000 POOLED CASH OPERATING CLEAR DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE: All STATEMENT: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All VOIDED DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All AMOUNT: 0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

CHECK NUMBER: 056922 THRU 056937

ACCOUNT --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

CHECK: ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056922  R&R ROLL-OFF LLC 425.88CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056923  PETTY CASH 55.90CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056924  BRISCO'S 64.63CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056925  DICKSON 167.98CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056926  ARAMARK 139.66CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056927  CENTRAL COAST TECHNOLOGY CONSU 220.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056928  ZENITH INSURANCE COMPANY 2,237.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056929  CLINICAL LAB OF SAN BERNARDINO 360.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056930  J.B. DEWAR, INC. 366.26CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056931  DIGITAL WEST NETWORKS, INC. 50.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056932  FLUID RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 978.75CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056933  GROVER BEACH, CITY OF 2,367.17CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056934  TOLMAN & WIKER INSURANCE SERVI 22,232.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056935  MOSS, LEVY & HARTZHEIM 7,000.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056936  RRM DESIGN GROUP 1,480.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/20/2018 CHECK 056937  TYERMAN'S BRAKE & ALIGMENT 70.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

  TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1-1001-0 CHECK TOTAL: 38,215.23CR

DEPOSIT TOTAL: 0.00

INTEREST TOTAL: 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL: 0.00

SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL: 0.00

EFT TOTAL: 0.00

BANK-DRAFT TOTAL: 0.00

Agenda Item 8CApril 25, 2018 - Page 11 of 73 



Payroll Summary Report
Board of Directors - Agenda Date April 25, 2018

(*)
Gross Wages 3/31/2018 4/14/2018

Regular $23,142.38 $23,009.52
Overtime Wages $1,333.07 $912.35
Stand By $700.00 $700.00

Gross Wages $25,175.45 $24,621.87

Disbursements

Net Wages $19,010.00 $18,624.56
State and Federal Agencies $5,069.39 $4,808.80
CalPERS - Normal $3,914.29 $3,915.94

Total Disbursements processed with Payroll $27,993.68 $27,349.30

Health & Other  (Disbursed with reoccurring bills) $3,553.40 $3,553.40

Total District Payroll Related Costs $31,547.08 $30,902.70

(*) Previously reported in prior Board Meeting packet - provided for comparison.

Agenda Item 8CApril 25, 2018 - Page 12 of 73 



 4/11/2018 12:27 PM CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER PAGE:   1

COMPANY:  99  - POOLED CASH FUND CHECK DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

ACCOUNT:  1-1001-000 POOLED CASH OPERATING CLEAR DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE: All STATEMENT: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All VOIDED DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All AMOUNT: 0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

CHECK NUMBER: 056914 THRU 056919

ACCOUNT --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

CHECK: ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1-1001-000 4/11/2018 CHECK 056914  AGP VIDEO INC. 1,245.00CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/11/2018 CHECK 056915  DIGITAL WEST NETWORKS, INC. 441.89CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/11/2018 CHECK 056916  VERIZON WIRELESS 334.53CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/11/2018 CHECK 056917  PACIFIC GAS & ELECTRIC 4,413.40CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/11/2018 CHECK 056918  SO CAL GAS 137.38CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/11/2018 CHECK 056919  STANLEY CONVERGENT SECURITY SO 89.50CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

  TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1-1001-0 CHECK TOTAL: 6,661.70CR

DEPOSIT TOTAL: 0.00

INTEREST TOTAL: 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL: 0.00

SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL: 0.00

EFT TOTAL: 0.00

BANK-DRAFT TOTAL: 0.00

  TOTALS FOR POOLED CASH FUND CHECK TOTAL: 6,661.70CR

DEPOSIT TOTAL: 0.00

INTEREST TOTAL: 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL: 0.00

SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL: 0.00

EFT TOTAL: 0.00

BANK-DRAFT TOTAL: 0.00

Agenda Item 8CApril 25, 2018 - Page 13 of 73 



 4/11/2018 12:27 PM CHECK RECONCILIATION REGISTER PAGE:   1

COMPANY:  99  - POOLED CASH FUND CHECK DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

ACCOUNT:  1-1001-000 POOLED CASH OPERATING CLEAR DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

TYPE: All STATEMENT: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

STATUS:   All VOIDED DATE: 0/00/0000 THRU 99/99/9999

FOLIO:    All AMOUNT: 0.00 THRU 999,999,999.99

CHECK NUMBER: 056920 THRU 056921

ACCOUNT --DATE--  --TYPE--  NUMBER  ---------DESCRIPTION----------  ----AMOUNT---    STATUS  FOLIO  CLEAR DATE

CHECK: ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

1-1001-000 4/11/2018 CHECK 056920  TASC -CLIENT INVOICES 54.67CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

1-1001-000 4/11/2018 CHECK 056921  SEIU LOCAL 620 146.36CR   OUTSTND   A    0/00/0000

  TOTALS FOR ACCOUNT 1-1001-0 CHECK TOTAL: 201.03CR

DEPOSIT TOTAL: 0.00

INTEREST TOTAL: 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL: 0.00

SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL: 0.00

EFT TOTAL: 0.00

BANK-DRAFT TOTAL: 0.00

  TOTALS FOR POOLED CASH FUND CHECK TOTAL: 201.03CR

DEPOSIT TOTAL: 0.00

INTEREST TOTAL: 0.00

MISCELLANEOUS   TOTAL: 0.00

SERVICE CHARGE  TOTAL: 0.00

EFT TOTAL: 0.00

BANK-DRAFT TOTAL: 0.00

Agenda Item 8CApril 25, 2018 - Page 14 of 73 



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: April 25, 2018 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Carey Casciola, Business and Accounting Manager 

Subject: Agenda Item #8D– Submittal of the District’s Fiscal Year 2017-18 Quarter 3 Treasurer 
Report 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board receive and file the District’s 2017-18 Quarter 3 Treasurer Report. 

 

Discussion 

Government Code section 61053(f) requires the District Treasurer to report to the Board of Directors 
quarterly regarding the receipts, disbursements and the balances in each account controlled by the 
District.  At the December 13th meeting your Board approved Resolution 2017-07 to adopt the District’s 
2018 Investment Policy which is required by Government Code section 53646(A)(2).  Section 7 of the 
Investment Policy requires the Financial Officer/ Treasurer to provide a quarterly report that identifies 
the District’s investments within 30 days after the end of each quarter. The attached worksheet has 
been prepared to review the District’s third quarter. 

The District holds accounts with the County of San Luis Obispo and Rabobank.  Attachment “A” 
provides a summary of each account held by the District which have been reconciled against the 
District’s general ledger.   

 

Other Agency Involvement 

 The County of San Luis Obispo  

 

Agenda Item 8DApril 25, 2018 - Page 15 of 73 



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

 

Other Financial Considerations 

The 2017/18 Quarter 3 Budget review was presented at the April 11th meeting. 

Results 

Establishing compliance with both Government Code 61000-61250 regarding Community Service 
Districts and the District’s Investment Policy will help ensure that the District’s costs are managed 
properly and promotes prosperous and well governed communities. 

 

Attachment A - 2017-18 Quarter 3 Treasurer Report  

Agenda Item 8DApril 25, 2018 - Page 16 of 73 



Oceano Community Services District
2017‐18 Treasurer Report ‐ Quarter 3

Account Month Beginning Balance Credits Debits Ending Balance Total

County of San Luis Obispo Accounts:

Oceano CSD ‐ Water Rev ‐ 31215 Jan‐18 $102.79 $0.30 $0.00 $103.09
(Revenue Bond) Feb‐18 $103.09 $0.00 $0.00 $103.09

Mar‐18 $103.09 $0.00 $0.00 $103.09

Oceano CSD ‐ 41005 Jan‐18 $2,817,169.28 $73,488.59 ($550,315.70) $2,340,342.17
Feb‐18 $2,340,342.17 $30,631.26 ($34.12) $2,370,939.31
Mar‐18 $2,370,939.31 $2,127.33 $0.00 $2,373,066.64

Oceano CSD ‐ 41045 Jan‐18 $4.15 $0.01 $0.00 $4.16
(Sanitary District Bond ‐ Paid Off) Feb‐18 $4.16 $0.00 $0.00 $4.16

Mar‐18 $4.16 $0.00 $0.00 $4.16 $2,373,173.89

Rabobank Accounts:

Public Checking ‐ 1101 Jan‐18 $225,110.23 $613,493.08 ($145,859.67) $692,743.64
Feb‐18 $692,743.64 $412,412.18 ($759,808.24) $345,347.58
Mar‐18 $345,347.58 $146,588.84 ($192,494.89) $299,441.53

Public Investment Money Market ‐ 5783 Jan‐18 $194,342.79 $35.15 $0.00 $194,377.94
Feb‐18 $194,377.94 $29.82 $0.00 $194,407.76
Mar‐18 $194,407.76 $31.96 $0.00 $194,439.72

Public Fund CD ‐ 7655 Jan‐18 $23,984.15 $12.39 $0.00 $23,996.54
(Water Fund Deposit) Feb‐18 $23,996.54 $12.00 $0.00 $24,008.54

Mar‐18 $24,008.54 $11.61 $0.00 $24,020.15

Public Investment Money Market ‐ 0161 Jan‐18 $209,724.96 $37.93 $0.00 $209,762.89
(Public Facilities Fees) Feb‐18 $209,762.89 $32.18 $0.00 $209,795.07

Mar‐18 $209,795.07 $33.32 $0.00 $209,828.39 $727,729.79

Total $3,100,903.68

Atachment A - 2017-18 Q3 Treasurer ReportAgenda Item 8DApril 25, 2018 - Page 17 of 73 



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: April 25, 2018 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Paavo Ogren, General Manager  

Subject: Agenda Item # 9A – Review and discussion of 2018 Committee Assignments with 
modifications as deemed appropriate  

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board review and discuss the 2018 Committee Assignments and modify as 
you deem appropriate. 

Discussion  

On December 13, 2017 the attached roster was decided as the Oceano Community Services District 
Committee Assignments.  Recently, Director Burnett has expressed concern on his availability to meet 
on the update to the Memorandum Of Understanding (MOU) with the Services Employee International 
Union (SEIU) and related personnel policies.  The work effort is expected to be extensive for the 
upcoming year as the goal of updating the MOU is to meet and confer with the union and the majority 
of these committee meetings will be held during business hours with OCSD staff and SEIU 
representatives. 

Other Agency Involvement 

n/a 

Other Financial Considerations 

n/a 

Results 

The election of Board Members to represent on committees promotes a well governed community. 

Attachments:   2018 Committee Assignments  

Agenda Item 9AApril 25, 2018 - Page 18 of 73 



2018 COMMITTEE & SUBJECT MATTER ASSIGNMENTS 

COMMITTEE ASSIGNMENTS TO OTHER AGENCY BOARDS AND COMMITTEES   Subject Matter Assignments / 
Expertise 

 
SSLOCSD Austin White 

1st & 3rd Wed/6:00/Jan.-June 
OCSD/July-Dec. Arroyo Grande City 
Council Chamber 215 E. Branch 
Arroyo Grande, CA 93420 

Reclaimed Water 

Five Cities Fire 
Authority White Coalwell 

3rd Fri./2:00/Grover Beach City 
Council Chamber 154 S. 8th St. 
Grover Beach, CA 93433 

Emergency Services 

Water Resource 
Advisory Comm.  
(WRAC)  

Coalwell Brunet 
1st Wed/1:30/SLO County Library 
Room 995 Palm St. San Luis 
Obispo, CA 93401 

Regional Water Programs 

Regional Water Mgt. 
Group (RWMG – 
IRWMP) 

Brunet Coalwell 
9:00/SLO County Library Room 995 
Palm St. San Luis Obispo, CA 
93401 

Regional Water Programs 

Zone 3 (Lopez 
Water) Brunet Coalwell 3rd Thurs Odd/6:30/ Varies Water Supply Contracts 

State Water Coalwell Brunet Varies Water Supply Contracts 

Oceano Advisory  White n/a 4th Mon/4:00/OCSD County Land Use 

RFP Ad Hoc 
Committee 

Angello Brunet Approve 5/10/2017  
 

LIAISON AND SUBJECT MATTER ASSIGNMENTS 

Supervisor Liaison Austin Varies 

Airport Land Use Angello 3rd Wed /1:30/County Government Center Board of Supervisors Chamber 1055 
Monterey St Room D170 San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

CA (Local) Special District's 
Association White Varies (Usually Noon Fri) every other month 

Zone 1/1A White 3rd Tues Odd/3:00/Sheriff South Patrol Station 1681 Front St. (Highway 1) Oceano, CA 
93445 

LAFCO  White 3rd Thur/9:00/ County Government Center Board of Supervisors Chamber 1055 
Monterey St San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 

RWQCB  Angello Odd Months/Varies 

NCMA Brunet Subject Matter Assignment 
RGSP (Regional 
Groundwater Sustainability 
Project) 

Coalwell 
 
Subject Matter Assignment; Meetings with other agencies varies 

SLOCOG Sedimentation White Varies 
Budgets, Fees and Customer 
Rates and Charges Angello Subject Matter Assignment 

Real Property Lease and 
Franchises Angello Subject Matter Assignment 

Capital Improvement 
Program Angello Subject Matter Assignment 

Rules, Regulations, Policies 
and Procedures, including 
SEIU MOU 

Brunet Subject Matter Assignment 

District Plans and Projects Brunet & 
Angello Subject Matter Assignment 

 

2018 Committee & Subject Matter AssignmentsAgenda Item 9AApril 25, 2018 - Page 19 of 73 



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: April 25, 2018 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Paavo Ogren, General Manager 

Subject: Agenda Item # 9(B):  Consideration of a Recommendation to approve a resolution Directing 
Approval of the Five Cities Fire Authority Budget for Fiscal year 2018/19, and discussion of related 
issues. 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board approve the attached resolution, which approves the Five Cities 
Fire Authority fiscal year 2018/19 budget option subject to approval of a Memorandum of Agreement 
(MOA) with the cities of Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach, and alternatively, approves of the “Status 
Quo” budget option if a MOA is not approved with the cities. 

Discussion 

The staff report from the Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) on March 16, 2018 is attached.  Two 
preliminary budgets were presented to the FCFA board for the purpose of providing direction to FCFA 
staff on preparing the FCFA budget for final approval.   

• The "Strategic Plan" option includes funding to begin the transition of reserve firefighters to 
full-time firefighters, and the multi-year projections include other elements of the strategic 
plan.  This option was supported by the FCFA Board on March 16, 2018.   
 

• The "Status Quo" option essentially reflects funding for staffing levels that is included in the 
current budget, but which has resulted in staffing shortages and closure of the Oceano station 
on multiple occasions. 

Also attached is an analysis of the District's funding contributions for each of the FCFA budget 
scenarios in relation to District property taxes and general fund costs.  Although both scenarios 
indicate potential deficit spending for FCFA contributions, the "Status Quo" option is reasonably close 
to budget estimates and normal budget savings.  In contrast, the "Strategic Plan" scenario has more 
significant budget deficits, including a deficit of $(75,791) for fiscal year 2018/19, and a cumulative 
deficit of $(820,340) over the next five years.   

Agenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 20 of 73 



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

Although the deficit spending needed to support the Strategic Plan option is not sustainable, the 
attached resolution approves the Strategic Plan option subject to a Memorandum of Agreement 
(MOA) between the District and the cities of Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach.  If an MOA is not 
approved, then the attached resolution provides for the approval of the Status Quo option. 

Concepts of the MOA were discussed with your Board on March 28, 2018, at which time your Board 
directed the General Manager to work with the City Managers and the FCFA Fire Chief on what, at that 
time, was characterized as a "Joint Powers of Authority (JPA) Restructuring Agreement," and which is 
now termed the MOA.  The primary principles that need to be addressed in the MOA are amendments 
to the existing JPA that would be needed to implement the Strategic Plan, including consideration of 
changes in the funding formula, and issues that would need to be addressed in 2018/19 if sufficient 
funding cannot be established for subsequent years and the existing JPA is no longer feasible. 

Attached are the agenda materials from the March 28th meeting that address the need for the MOA.  
Staff will provide a verbal update on the MOA work effort.  The FCFA meeting agenda of April 20, 2018 
includes a verbal update by Chief Lieberman on the budget and the MOA and your Board will also be 
provided an update on those FCFA discussions at your meeting.  Lastly, a draft of the MOA may be 
available at your Board meeting although any action on the MOA would need to be on a subsequent 
agenda. 

In addition to the resolution and an update on the MOA, two additional attachments are included that 
reflect the existing special tax approved in Los Osos and the proposed tax for Cambria.  The Los Osos 
tax is based on land use whereas the Cambria tax is equal for each parcel.  This information is provided 
for general discussion on tax options to consider and would be needed to support the FCFA Strategic 
Plan budget funding in future years. 

Other Agency Involvement and Financial Considerations 

Five Cities Fire Authority, the cities of Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach 

Results 

Approving the attached resolution supports avoiding an impasse on the FCFA budget for fiscal year 
2018/19. 

Attachments:   

 Resolution Approving FCFA 2018-19 Budget 
A. Multi-Year Fire Fund Budget Analysis - Originally presented March 28, 2018 
B. MOA related handouts - Originally presented March 28, 2018 
C. Five Cities Fire Authority Staff Report - March 16, 2018  
D. Special Tax Information (Los Osos and Cambria) 

Agenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 21 of 73 



 

OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO: 2018 - __ 

 
A RESOLUTION DIRECTING APPROVAL OF THE FIVE CITIES FIRE AUTHORITY 

BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2018/19 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Oceano Community Services District (District) is a member agency of the Five 
Cities Fire Authority (FCFA), which was created in 2010 upon approval of a Joint Powers of Authority 
Agreement (JPA Agreement) by the District and the cities of Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach; and  

 
WHEREAS, on September 22, 2017, the FCFA Board of Directors adopted the Five Cities Fire 

Authority Strategic Plan; and    
 

WHEREAS, on November 17, 2017, the FCFA Board of Directors began considering direction 
to the FCFA Fire Chief regarding whether to implement a plan for a phased transition of the Reserve 
Firefighter program from part time to full time employees; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 16, 2018, the FCFA Board of Directors received two preliminary budget 

proposals for the purpose of providing feedback to FCFA staff for further development of the Fiscal Year 
2018-19 FCFA budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the two budget proposals were termed the "Status Quo" and the "Strategic Plan" 

budget options and included five year budget projections for each option; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the draft minutes of the March 16, 2018 FCFA Board of Directors indicated support 

for the Strategic Plan budget option, including reference to statements by the District's representative, 
FCFA Board member White, that "Oceano Community Services District is looking for ways to support 
the "Strategic Plan" budget; and, 

 
WHEREAS, on March 28, 2018, the District Board of Directors reviewed and discussed the 

FCFA budget options presented at the FCFA Board meeting of March 16, 2018; and,  
 
WHEREAS, at their meeting of March 28, 2018, the District Board of Directors also reviewed 

information from District staff that included an estimated District General Fund deficit in fiscal year 
2018/19 of $(20,739) if the Status Quo budget is adopted and an estimated District General Fund deficit 
in fiscal year 2018/19 of $(75,791) if the Strategic Plan budget is adopted; and, 

 
WHEREAS, at their meeting of March 28, 2018, the District Board of Directors also reviewed 

information from District staff that included an estimated cumulative 5 year District General Fund deficit 
of $(149,552) based on multi-year budget projections utilizing Status Quo budget assumption and an 
estimated cumulative 5 year District General Fund deficit of $(820,340) based on multi-year budget 
projections utilizing Strategic Plan budget assumption; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Status Quo budget option for FCFA provides a level of service and staffing that 

is generally consistent with the JPA Agreement; and, 

Attachment - ResolutionAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 22 of 73 



 

 
WHEREAS, the Strategic Plan budget option for FCFA provides a level of service and staffing 

that is greater than that provided in the JPA Agreement and includes funding for a phased transition of the 
Reserve Firefighter program from part time to full time employees; and, 

 
WHEREAS, increasing service levels and staffing warrants amendments to the JPA Agreement, 

including consideration of amendments to the funding formula that determines the annual budget 
contributions from each of the member agencies to the FCFA; and, 

 
WHEREAS, although at the District meeting of February 13, 2018 the District Board provided 

direction to their FCFA representatives to vote "no" on the fiscal year 2018/19 FCFA budget, on March 
28, 2018, the Board provided direction to the District General Manager that included working with FCFA 
Chief Lieberman and City Managers on restructuring (i.e. amending) the JPA Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District General Manager has met and conferred with FCFA Chief Lieberman 

and the City Managers, including preparation of a draft JPA restructuring agreement, which has been 
renamed as a Memorandum of Agreement; and,  

 
WHEREAS, the Memorandum of Agreement provides for approval of the FCFA 2018/19 

Strategic Plan budget option while also providing terms that require reconsideration of the JPA 
Agreement by all member agencies during fiscal year 2018/19 and terms that could result in the mutual 
termination of the FCFA JPA as of July 1, 2019 if the three member agencies of FCFA are not able to 
agree on JPA Agreement amendments during fiscal year 2018/19. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Oceano 

Community Services District that: 
 

1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 
 

2. That the Fiscal Year 2018/19 FCFA Strategic Plan budget is approved as presented to 
the FCFA Board of Directors on March 16, 2018 provided that a Memorandum of 
Agreement is also approved by the District, the City of Arroyo Grande and the City of 
Grover Beach prior to the regular FCFA Board meeting in June 2018. 
 

3. That the Fiscal Year 2018/19 FCFA Status Quo budget is approved as presented to the 
FCFA Board of Directors on March 16, 2018 if a Memorandum of Agreement is not 
approved by the District, the City of Arroyo Grande and City of Grover Beach prior to 
the regular FCFA Board meeting in June 2018. 
 

4. The District Board members that are appointed to the FCFA Board of Directors are 
hereby ordered to vote on the FCFA Fiscal Year 2018/19 budget consistent with 
direction provided in this resolution. 
 

 
 
  

Attachment - ResolutionAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 23 of 73 



 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Oceano Community Services 
District on April 25, 2018 by the following vote: 
 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
      _______________________________ 
      President, Board of Directors 

of the Oceano Community Services District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Board Secretary of the 
Oceano Community Services  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

________________________________ 
Jeffrey A. Minnery, District Counsel

 

Attachment - ResolutionAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 24 of 73 



A
tta

ch
m

en
t A

 - 
M

ul
ti 

Y
ea

r F
ire

 F
un

d 
A

na
ly

si
s 

fro
m

 M
ar

ch
 2

8,
 2

01
8

Agenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 25 of 73 



A
tta

ch
m

en
t A

 - 
M

ul
ti 

Y
ea

r F
ire

 F
un

d 
A

na
ly

si
s 

fro
m

 M
ar

ch
 2

8,
 2

01
8

Agenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 26 of 73 



A
tta

ch
m

en
t A

 - 
M

ul
ti 

Y
ea

r F
ire

 F
un

d 
A

na
ly

si
s 

fro
m

 M
ar

ch
 2

8,
 2

01
8

Agenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 27 of 73 



OCEANO CSD ‐ AGENDA ITEM 9(B) ‐ MARCH 28, 2018

WHAT ARE THE FCFA 
MULTI‐YEAR BUDGET 

PROJECTIONS?

WHAT COST INCREASES IS OCSD FACING?

WHAT JPA 
AMENDMENTS 
ARE THE CITIES 

SEEKING?

WHAT WILL THE ADDITIONAL COST 
INCREASES BE WITH JPA AMENDMENTS?

HOWMUCH SPECIAL 
TAXES WOULD NEED 
TO BE APPROVED 

FOR OCSD?

HOW MUCH WOULD THE SPECIAL TAX BE 
FOR EACH PROPERTY IN OCEANO?

TAXES WOULD NEED 
TO BE APPROVED 

FOR OCSD?

HOW MUCH WOULD THE SPECIAL TAX BE 
FOR EACH PROPERTY IN OCEANO?

WHAT IF THE 
SPECIAL TAX DOES 

NOT PASS?

HOW WOULD OCSD PROVIDE FIRE & 
EMERGENCY SERVICES?

* CONTRACT WITH A.G. / GROVER?
* CONTRACT WITH COUNTY/CAL FIRE?

*RESURRECT OCSD FIRE DEP'T?

IS A JPA RESTRUCTURING AGREEMENT NEEDED?
*  IF OCSD SPECIAL TAX DOES NOT PASS

*WHAT IF A RESTRUCTURED JPA IS NOT AGREED UPON
* TRANSITIONING TO A CONTRACT FOR SERVICES

*  AS A CONDITION FOR APPROVAL OF A DEFICIT TO FUND 
THE 2018/19 BUDGET

Attachment "B" - MOA Related Handouts 
from March 28, 2018

Agenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 28 of 73 



Oceano Community Services District 
Board Meeting - March 28, 2018 
Draft Concepts for a JPA Restructuring Agreement  
 
 
 
Concepts for a JPA Restructuring Agreement 
 

• Based on direction from March, 2018 FCFA Board meeting. 
 

• Needs to be approved by all three agencies by June 1, 2018 to avoid a 2018/19 
budget impasse. 
 

• Establishes the FCFA "Strategic Plan" budget scenario for 2018/19, including a one-
time only budget deficit (for OCSD). 
 

• Requires each agency to negotiate in good faith a restructured JPA so that: 
 

o Lessons learned since the JPA was created in 2010 can be addressed. 
o The funding formula / methodology can be addressed. 
o Future certainty for FCFA can be established. 

 
• Establishes a deadline for each agency to adopt the restructured JPA. 

 
o Deadline of a date to be determined - December 31, 2018 - February 28, 2019. 
o Establishes June 30, 2019 as the end-date for a three-agency FCFA if a 

restructured JPA is not agreed upon by all three agencies. 
 

• Requires each agency to negotiate in good faith a contract for services for Oceano. 
 

o If an OCSD special tax does not pass. 
o If the three agencies cannot agree on a restructured JPA and FCFA becomes 

a two-agency department (Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach). 

Attachment "B" - MOA Related Handouts 
from March 28, 2018

Agenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 29 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 30 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 31 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 32 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 33 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 34 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 35 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 36 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 37 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 38 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 39 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 40 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 41 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 42 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 43 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 44 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 45 of 73 



Attachment "C"- FCFA Staff ReportAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 46 of 73 



Date:  August 7, 2014 
Agenda Item:  11E 
(   )  Approved 
(   )  Denied 
(   )  Continued 

RESOLUTION NO. 2014-09 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE LOS OSOS COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

APPROVING THE CPI RATE INCREASE FOR THE SPECIAL FIRE TAX 
AND SETTING ASSESSMENTS FOR THE SPECIAL FIRE TAX 
FOR PURPOSES OF FIRE PROTECTION AND PREVENTION  

AND DIRECTING THEIR COLLECTION BY THE COUNTY  
IN THE FISCAL YEAR 2014/2015 TAX ROLL  

WHEREAS, the Los Osos Community Services District (“District”) pursuant to Government 
Code § 53978 is authorized to provide fire protection services; and 

WHEREAS, the voters of the Los Osos Community Services District (“District”) approved 
Measure A-05 that adopted Ordinance 2005-01 that repealed the prior special tax and adopted a 
new special tax for the purposes of obtaining, furnishing, operating and maintaining fire department 
equipment and/or apparatus, real property and facilities, for fire protection services, rescue services, 
emergency response services and other services relating to the personnel and for no other purpose; 
and 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2005-01, Section 6 provides as follows:  

MAXIMUM TAX AMOUNTS.  The maximum amount of tax imposed on each parcel   
pursuant to this ordinance shall be determined as follows: 

A. Commencing fiscal year 2005/2006 a maximum special tax rate of Thirteen Dollars 
and Fifty-Two Cents ($13.52) per unit of benefit, to be adjusted each year thereafter 
not to exceed the average of the percentage changes in the Consumer Price Index 
(CPI) for all items for the San Francisco/Oakland/San Jose and the Consumer Price 
Index for all items in Los Angeles/ Anaheim/ Riverside at June 30 of the current year 
over the previous year’s average of those indexes on the same date. 

WHEREAS, in accordance with the formula contained in the ordinance, several increases 
have been adopted through the years with the last increase of thirty-four cents ($0.34) 
adopted for Fiscal Year 2013/14 setting the rate to $15.22 per unit of benefit; and 

WHEREAS, the average percentage change in the Consumer Price Index for the period from 
June 30, 2013 to June 30, 2014 has been determined to be an increase of 1.86% or twenty-
eight cents ($0.28) setting the rate to fifteen dollars and fifty cents ($15.50) per unit of benefit, 
exhibited as follows:  

Attachment "D" - Special Tax InformationAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 47 of 73 



SCHEDULE OF BENEFITS 

Property Classification/Land Use 
Number of  Benefit Units Examples for Fiscal 

Year 2014/15 Per Parcel 

Residential/Single Family  Dwelling 5 Units Per Dwelling Unit 
Total of $77.50 Per 

Year 

Residential/Secondary Dwelling on 
Parcel 

4 Units Per Dwelling Unit 
Amount dependent 

on number of 
dwellings on parcel 

Residential Care Facility 5 Units plus 1/Patient Room 
Amount Dependent 

on  Size 

Condominium 4 Units Per Dwelling Unit 
Amount Dependent 

on Size 

Duplex/Triplex/Fourplex 4 Units Per Dwelling Unit 
Amount Dependent 

on Size 

Apartment 3 Units Per Dwelling Unit 
Amount Dependent 

on Size 

Mobile Home 3 Units Per Dwelling Unit 
Total of $46.50  Per 

Year 

Commercial/Manufacturing/Storage 1 Unit Per 300 S.F. or Less 
Amount Dependent 

on Size 

Schools and Churches 1 Unit Per 300 S.F. or Less 
Amount Dependent 

on Size 

Preschools/Daycares 1 Unit Per 300 S.F. or Less 
Amount Dependent 

on Size 
Unimproved/Agriculture Property 1 
Acre or Less 

1 Unit Per Acre or Less 
Amount Dependent 

on Size 
Unimproved/Agriculture Property 
Over 1 Acre  

1 Unit/Acre Maximum of 5 
Amount Dependent 

on Size 

Property for Vehicle Storage 2 Units Per Acre or Less 
Amount Dependent 

on Size 

Barns/Shops Over 300 Square Feet 2 Units Per Building 
Total of $31.00  Per 

Year 

Transit Container Storage 1 Unit Per Container 
Total of $15.50  Per 

Year 

Motel/Hotel/Bed and Breakfast 3 Units Per Rental Room 
Amount Dependent 

on Size 

Golf Courses/Recreational Facilities 1 Unit Per Acre/Maximum of 5  
Amount Dependent 

on Size 

WHEREAS, the Emergency Advisory Committee (ESAC), in conjunction with CALFIRE staff, 
and the Finance Advisory Committee (FAC) recommended the rate of fifteen dollars and fifty 
cents ($15.50) per unit of benefit; and 

WHEREAS, General Property Taxes that fund fire functions declined for the last five years 
and although these slightly increased, full recovery of lost tax revenues will take many more 
years; and  

WHERAS the Fire Fund has no other means to fund increases in costs of equipment and 
materials on account of inflation; and 

WHEREAS, the Board finds that the funds generated annually by this Special Fire Tax rate is 
necessary to prudently operate Station 15-South Bay in Fiscal Year 2014/15; and 

WHEREAS, the Board held a hearing on this date pursuant to a published notice and before 
the adoption of this resolution to receive public input, including any objections to adopting the 
proposed increase on the rate and setting the Special  Fire Tax rate for Fiscal Year 2014/15.  

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE LOS OSOS COMMUNITY      
SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DECLARE, DETERMINE AND ORDER 
AS FOLLOWS: 

Attachment "D" - Special Tax InformationAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 48 of 73 



1. That the findings and recitations in Paragraphs 1 through 10 are true and
correct;

2. That the Board of Directors hereby confirms and levies the Special Fire Tax on
all properties within the Los Osos Community Services District a rate of Fifteen
Dollars and Fifty Cents ($15.50) per unit of benefit for the Fiscal Year 2014/15, in
accordance with the Schedule of Benefits listed above; and

3. That this special tax on the parcels of real property within the Los Osos
Community Services District shall be established, imposed and levied in the
amounts as listed in EXHIBIT A and as so confirmed shall appear as separate
items on the Fiscal Year 2014/15  tax bill of each parcel of property so listed;
and

4. That said special tax shall be collected at the same time and in the same
manner as general taxes levied for collection by the County pursuant to
Government Code § 61115(b).

On the motion of Director ____________________, seconded by Director ______________________, 
and on the following roll call vote, to wit: 

Ayes:_____________________________________________________________________ 
Noes:____________________________________________________________________ 
Absent:___________________________________________________________________ 
Conflicts:__________________________________________________________________ 

The foregoing resolution is hereby passed, approved, and adopted by the Board of Directors of the 
Los Osos Community Services District this 7th day of August, 2014. 

_____________________________ 
R. Michael Wright 
Vice President, Board of Directors  
Los Osos Community Services District 

ATTEST:             APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

_______________________________ ____________________________ 
Kathy A. Kivley Michael W. Seitz  
General Manager and Secretary to the Board District Legal Counsel 

Attachment "D" - Special Tax InformationAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 49 of 73 



Attachment "D" - Special Tax InformationAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 50 of 73 



Attachment "D" - Special Tax InformationAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 51 of 73 



Attachment "D" - Special Tax InformationAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 52 of 73 



Attachment "D" - Special Tax InformationAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 53 of 73 



Attachment "D" - Special Tax InformationAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 54 of 73 



Attachment "D" - Special Tax InformationAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 55 of 73 



Attachment "D" - Special Tax InformationAgenda Item 9(B)April 25, 2018 - Page 56 of 73 



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: April 25, 2018 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Paavo Ogren, General Manager 

Subject: Agenda Item # 9(C):  Consideration of a Recommendation to Approve a Resolution by a 4/5ths 
vote Delegating to the General Manager the Authority to Take Emergency Action to Replace the 
Oceano Lagoon Waterline between Maui Circle and Utah Avenue in accordance with Public 
Contract Code 22050 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board Approve a Resolution by a 4/5ths vote delegating to the General Manager 
the authority to take emergency action to replace the Oceano Lagoon Waterline between Maui Circle and Utah 
Avenue in accordance with Public Contract Code 22050. 

Discussion 

The attached resolution has been prepared to proceed with emergency efforts pursuant to Public Contract Code 
22050 to replace the waterline under the Oceano Lagoon that has failed between Maui Circle and Utah Avenue.  
Exhibit "A" of the attached resolution illustrates the location of the failure.  The waterline is currently out of 
service and poses risks to loss or damage to life, health, property or essential public services that will be 
prevented or mitigate through emergency efforts.  In addition to risks associated with losing potable water 
service and impacts on fire flows, the risks of loss in service to the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation 
District's wastewater treatment facilities needs to be immediately mitigated to prevent or mitigate impacts on 
essential public services. 

In addition to the formal authority to proceed with procuring a contractor to replace the Oceano Lagoon 
Waterline, the resolution also provides the history of District and consultant efforts since the waterline failed.  
Lastly, the resolution includes the necessary findings to support the emergency actions for compliance with 
requirements of environmental resources agencies. 

Other related information attached includes a Technical Memorandum prepared by Terra Verde Environmental 
Inc.   A draft application for an emergency permit from the California Coastal Commission has been prepared by 
Terra Verde and completed and submitted prior to the Board meeting.  A similar application will also be 
submitted to the County of San Luis Obispo and a verbal update on those efforts will be provided at the Board 

Agenda Item # 9(C)April 25, 2018 - Page 57 of 73 



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

meeting.  Lastly, District staff has may also be able to provide an update on the timing that a contractor may be 
mobilized to perform the work. 

Other Agency Involvement 

Staff is coordinating with State Parks since they are owners of the property and a right of entry is needed.   

The District's annual blanket encroachment permit with County Public Works, which allows work within the 
County maintained road system, allows the District to proceed with emergency efforts although the contractor 
may be required to obtain a separate encroachment permit. 

Other federal and state environmental resource agencies will be also be notified. 

Financial Considerations 

Cost estimates are currently anticipated to be approximately $100,000, including contractor and consultant 
costs.  Sufficient savings is anticipated in the current year's water fund budget. 

Results 

Replacing the failed Oceano Lagoon Waterline promotes continued reliable water service and prevents or 
mitigates loss or damage to life, health, property or essential public services. 

Attachments:   

• Resolution Delegating to the General Manager the Authority to Take Emergency Action to Replace the Oceano 
Lagoon Waterline between Maui Circle and Utah Avenue in accordance with Public Contract Code 22050. 
 

• Technical Memorandum dated April 11, 2018 from Terra Verde Environmental (excluding attachments).   

Agenda Item # 9(C)April 25, 2018 - Page 58 of 73 



 

OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO: 2018 - __ 

 
A RESOLUTION PURSUANT TO CALIFORNIA PUBLIC CONTRACT CODE 22050 
DELEGATING TO THE GENERAL MANAGER THE AUTHORITY TO TAKE ANY 
DIRECTLY RELATED AND IMMEDIATE ACTION AND TO ORDER ACTION TO 

PROCURE THE NECESSARY EQUIPMENT, SERVICES, AND SUPPLIES FOR 
EMERGENCY REPLACEMENT OF THE FAILED WATERLINE UNDER THE OCEANO 

LAGOON BETWEEN UTAH AVENUE AND MAUI CIRCLE, OCEANO CALIFORNIA 
 
 

WHEREAS, on March 24, 2018 at approximately 5:00 a.m., the District's on-call operator 
received a call-out for low water pressure at a property on McCarthy Avenue and upon responding 
determined that a waterline under the Oceano Lagoon (the "Oceano Lagoon Waterline") had failed.  The 
operator isolated the waterline by turning off valves, terminated the "looped" flow of water, and notified 
the State Water Board, the San Luis Obispo County Office of Emergency Services and the San Luis 
Obispo County Office of Environmental Health; and  

 
WHEREAS, Exhibit "A" illustrates the location of the failed Oceano Lagoon Waterline; and    

 
WHEREAS, in response to the unexpected failure of the Oceano Lagoon Waterline, the District 

staff immediately embarked on efforts to identify actions that would be needed to repair or replace the 
Oceano Lagoon Waterline, including but not limited to action needed by the District Board of Directors 
as may be required by the California Public Contracts code, requirements of state and federal 
environmental resource agencies, and options to repair or replace the Oceano Lagoon Waterline; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 28, 2018, the District Board of Directors authorized the District Manager 

to initiate certain emergency actions; and 
 
WHEREAS, on or about March 28, 2018, the District General Manager contacted the San Luis 

Obispo County Public Works Department, Environmental Division, seeking assistance on determining 
and complying with requirements of state and federal environmental resource agencies; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Environmental Division Manager indicated that staffing could not be provided 

and informed the General Manager that Terra Verde Environmental Consulting (Terra Verde Inc.) had 
previously consulted on environmental resources of the Oceano Lagoon; and 

WHEREAS, on April 6, 2018 the General Manager approved a proposal from Terra Verde 
Environmental Consulting (Terra Verde Inc.) for the purpose of assisting the District in addressing 
requirements of state and federal environmental resource agencies; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 10, 2018, the General Manager, the District's Utility Operations 

Supervisor, a representative of Terra Verde,  and a professional engineer of  Cannon Associates made a 
site visit to the location of the Oceano Lagoon Waterline; and  

 

Agenda Item # 9(C)April 25, 2018 - Page 59 of 73 



 

WHEREAS, during the site visit, the individuals present identified what appeared to be a 
segment of the Oceano Lagoon Waterline that failed, as depicted in Exhibit "A," which created 
substantial doubt regarding repairing the waterline through in-situ or other construction methodologies 
and essentially eliminated further consideration of repair options; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 11, 2018, Terra Verde Inc. provided the District with a Technical 

Memorandum (Technical Memorandum) titled "Regulatory Agency Permitting Summary for the Oceano 
Community Service District Emergency Waterline Replacement Project"; and 

 
WHEREAS, on April 12, 2018, the General Manager approved a proposal from Cannon 

Associates to assist in engineering and surveying services that are needed to replace the failed Oceano 
Lagoon Waterline; and  

 
WHEREAS, on April 16, 2018, Cannon Associates provide the District with a survey indicating 

the public right of way was substantial on both sides of existing paved roads observed during the site visit 
of April 10, 2018, which together indicate that the District could utilize a construction methodology 
described as Horizontal Directional Drilling (HDD) to replace the failed Oceano Lagoon Waterline and 
avoid direct construction activities in the Oceano Lagoon or adjacent environment; and 

 
WHEREAS, the HDD construction methodology does have a potential to frac-out, which is 

described in the Terra Verde Technical Memorandum along with recommendations for addressing 
requirements of state and federal environmental resource agencies and mitigation of a potential frac-out; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the failure of the Oceano Lagoon Waterline necessitates emergency replacement as 

it represents a sudden unexpected occurrence demanding immediate action to prevent or mitigate loss or 
damage to life, health, property or essential public services; and 

WHEREAS, Exhibit "B" illustrates the District's water system in the vicinity of the failed 
Oceano Lagoon Waterline; and 

 
WHEREAS, two areas exist within the District's water system that require immediate 

replacement of the Oceano Lagoon Waterline to prevent and mitigate loss of essential public services 
including potable water service necessary for health and well being, and water that is needed for fire and 
emergency services to protect life and property; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Oceano Lagoon Waterline requires immediate replacement because the single 

remaining District waterline depicted in Exhibit "B" that is serving the area generally described as the 
"Island" is located within property owned by the County of San Luis Obispo's Oceano Airport, and in the 
event of a failure, would result in an extended period that potable water service and water for fire and 
other emergency services would not be available since access to the waterline that transverses airport 
property is inaccessible while the airport is operating; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Oceano Lagoon Waterline requires immediate replacement because the single 

remaining District waterline depicted in Exhibit "B" that is serving the area generally described as the 
"Island" also serves water to the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District, which owns and 

Agenda Item # 9(C)April 25, 2018 - Page 60 of 73 



 

operates a regional wastewater treatment plant at that location, and which provides an essential public 
service whose operations would be impaired if potable water service and/or water that is needed for fire 
and emergency services is interrupted; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Oceano Lagoon Waterline requires immediate replacement because a separate 

and single remaining District waterline depicted in Exhibit "B," that is serving the area generally 
described as "Beach Properties," has undersized waterlines that are subject to flow reductions and 
impaired ability to respond to fires and other emergencies while the Oceano Lagoon Waterline is out of 
service; and, 

  
WHEREAS, the District's estimated cost of the emergency project is less than $175,000 and the 

District may utilized provisions of the Uniform Public Construction Cost Accounting Act, which are 
incorporated in California Public Contract Code 22000 et seq. to  procure the necessary equipment, 
services, and supplies for replacement of the Oceano Lagoon Waterline; and 

 
WHEREAS, California Public Contract Code 22050 (a) authorizes a public agency to take any 

directly related and immediate action required to replace a public facility in the case of an emergency and 
to procure the necessary equipment, services, and supplies for those purposes, without giving notice for 
bids to let contracts provided that the governing board of the public agency finds that, based on 
substantial evidence, that the emergency will not permit a delay resulting from a competitive solicitation 
of bids and that the action  is necessary to respond to the emergency; and 

 
WHEREAS, California Public Contract Code 22050 (b) authorizes the governing body of a 

public agency to delegate to the District's General Manager the authority to order any action to replace 
the public facility as authorized by Public Contract Code 22050 (a); and 

 
WHEREAS, the time required to obtain emergency permits and provide emergency notifications 

to environmental resource agencies is imminent and additional time to solicit competitive bids will 
unduly delay the replacement of the Oceano Lagoon Waterline; and 

 
WHEREAS, the availability of contractors to immediately perform the required work, and timing 

requirements that would be included in bid documents, may result in inflated bids and conflict with low-
bid requirements as compared to contractor procurement that is authorized by Public Contract Code 
22050 (a); and, 

 
WHEREAS, serving the public interest demand immediate action to prevent and mitigate loss of 

essential public services including potable water service necessary for health and well being, and water 
that is needed for fire and emergency services to protect life and property as a result of the sudden 
unexpected failure of the Oceano Lagoon Waterline. 

 
  

Agenda Item # 9(C)April 25, 2018 - Page 61 of 73 



 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Oceano 
Community Services District that: 

 
1. The foregoing recitals are true and correct. 

 
2. That the failure of the Oceano Lagoon Waterline at a location illustrated in Exhibit 

"A" was a sudden and unexpected failure. 
 

3. The Oceano Lagoon Waterline requires emergency replacement to prevent or mitigate 
loss or damage to life, health, property or essential public services, including but not 
limited to the following: 
 

a. Potable water service and water service for fire flows to the wastewater 
treatment facilities of the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District, an 
essential public service provided by a governmental agency that is independent 
from the District. 
 

b. Potable water service and water service for fire flows to the area described as 
the "Island" and illustrated in Exhibit "B." 
 

c. Potable water service and water service for fire flows to the area described as 
the "Beach Properties" and illustrated in Exhibit "B."  

 
4. Pursuant to Public Contract Code 22050 (a), substantial evidence supports the 

conclusions that the need for emergency actions cannot be delayed, that the District 
has and must continue to act as expeditiously as possible to replace the failed Oceano 
Lagoon Waterline, and delays resulting from a competitive solicitation of bids will 
unduly impact the need to prevent or mitigate loss or damage to life, health, property 
or essential public services.   
 

5. Pursuant to Public Contract Code 22050 (b), the District General Manager is 
authorized to take any directly related and immediate action required to replace the 
Oceano Lagoon Waterline and to procure the necessary equipment, services, and 
supplies for those purposes, without giving notice for bids to let contracts. 
 

6. Pursuant to Public Contract Code 22050 (b), this resolution must be approved by at 
least of 4/5ths vote. 
 

7. Pursuant to Public Contract Code 22050 c), the General Manager shall report to the 
Board of Directors at each subsequent regular meeting so that the Board can review 
the emergency action to determine, by a 4/5ths vote, that there is a need to continue 
the emergency action. 

 
 
  

Agenda Item # 9(C)April 25, 2018 - Page 62 of 73 



 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Oceano Community Services 
District on April 25, 2018 by the following vote: 
 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
      _______________________________ 
      President, Board of Directors 

of the Oceano Community Services District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Board Secretary of the 
Oceano Community Services  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

________________________________ 
Jeffrey A. Minnery, District Counsel

 

Agenda Item # 9(C)April 25, 2018 - Page 63 of 73 



 

Resolution - Exhibit "A"Agenda Item # 9(C)April 25, 2018 - Page 64 of 73 



Resolution - Exhibit "B"Agenda Item # 9(C)April 25, 2018 - Page 65 of 73 

ocsdgm
Callout
Pier AvenueandRemaining Single Line to Beach properties

ocsdgm
Polygon

ocsdgm
Text Box
Pacific Ocean

ocsdgm
Text Box
WaterlineBreak (apx)

ocsdgm
Polygon

ocsdgm
Text Box
Ocean Lagoon

ocsdgm
Callout
Remaining Single Line to the Island

ocsdgm
Text Box
EXHIBIT - ITEM 9(C)OCEANO CSD BOARD MEETING DATE MARCH 28, 2018(PROPOSED ADDITION TO AGENDA)



April 11, 2018 

Paavo Ogren, General Manager 
Oceano Community Services District 
1655 Front Street 
Oceano, CA 93445 

RE:  Technical Memorandum  –  Regulatory  Agency  Permitting  Summary  for  the  Oceano 
Community Services District Emergency Waterline Replacement Project 

As requested, the following provides an overview of the regulatory agency permits and/or 
authorizations that would be necessary for the Oceano Community Services District (OCSD) 
Emergency Waterline Replacement Project (project) located in the community of Oceano, 
California. Terra Verde Environmental Consulting, LLC (Terra Verde) understands that the 
current waterline located beneath the lower section of the Oceano Lagoon has been damaged 
and the OCSD is proposing emergency action to replace the damaged section in in its entirety 
(project). The waterline is currently shut‐in and is critical to the water supply for the local 
community including for overall fire safety. The proposed method for replacement is Horizontal 
Directional Drilling (HDD) over an estimated 400‐foot section of the Oceano Lagoon. The project 
is located in an area that falls under the jurisdiction of multiple resource agencies that would 
require notification of emergency action. The following provides a summary of the current 
project and regulatory agency setting as well as recommendations for agency notifications and 
avoidance and minimization measures for protection of sensitive resources. 

Terra Verde was previously retained by the San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water 
Conservation District (County) in 2012 to identify and delineate the extent of waters of the 
United States (U.S.), including wetlands, under Clean Water Act (CWA) jurisdiction in the 
Oceano Lagoon and adjacent coastal and riparian habitat features. The results of the survey 
were documented in a formal Waters/Wetlands Delineation report for the County’s use in 
future project planning. Based on the results of the 2012 waters/wetlands delineation, the 
project area intersects the lower section of the Meadow Creek corridor and associated lagoon 
(i.e., Oceano Lagoon) which is a perennial tributary to the tidal waters of the Arroyo Grande 
Creek mouth and the traditionally navigable waters of the Pacific Ocean (see Attachment A: 
Figure 1 – Project Overview). The project area is also located within the Coastal Zone of San Luis 
Obispo County as designated by the California Public Resources Code Division 20, Sections 
30000 – 30012 which includes a portion of the California Coastal Commission’s (CCC) originally 
retained jurisdiction (see Attachment A: Figure 2 – CCC Originally Retained Jurisdiction). 

Terra Verde Technical Memorandum 
(without attachments)

Agenda Item # 9(C)April 25, 2018 - Page 66 of 73 



A site visit was completed by the project team which included Brian Dugas of Terra Verde on 
Tuesday, April 10, 2018. The purpose of site visit was to inspect the proposed HDD work spaces 
and waterline corridor through the lower section of the Oceano Lagoon (see Figure 1) to 
determine jurisdictional boundaries and regulatory agency permitting triggers. Based upon 
information provided by the HDD contractor, all bore pit operations would be limited to the 
existing waterline easement and residential neighborhood access roads. Specifically, there is 
one HDD bore pit proposed at the western end of Maui Circle and an exit hole located at the 
easternmost limits of Utah Avenue (see Figure 1). A portion of the damaged waterline is visible 
adjacent to the current open water habitat of the lagoon channel which is limited to a narrow 
area less than 10 feet in width and 6 inches in overall depth. The proposed HDD boring 
operations and 400‐foot pipeline installation would be completed in one day followed by one 
day of waterline tie‐ins and site cleanup. Due the potential for frac‐out of drilling muds into the 
lagoon area during boring operations, there will be some minor willow (Salix sp.) trimming 
proposed to allow for safe access along the waterline corridor and channel crossing area prior 
to project implementation. 

Due to the Oceano Lagoon feature being listed as a blue‐line stream course with defined 
bed/bank, an Emergency Notification to the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW) 
pursuant to Section 1602 of Fish and Game Code would likely be necessary due to the proposed 
HDD operations and potential for frac‐out (see Appendix B – CDFW Emergency Notification). 
The blue‐line drainage is also considered waters of the U.S. as it maintains a significant nexus to 
navigable waters of the United States (i.e., Pacific Ocean via Arroyo Grande Creek). However, 
emergency permits from the United States Army Corps of Engineers (Corps) and the Regional 
Water Quality Board (RWQCB) pursuant to Section 404 and 401 of the Clean Water Act would 
not be deemed necessary as only HDD operations beneath Section 10 waters (i.e., navigable 
waters) are considered an impact to waters of the U.S. Further, the Corps does consider drilling 
fluids used for HDD operations (bentonite slurry) as “fill” material. Notification may only be 
required if the clean‐up efforts of a HDD operation discharge would require work within waters 
of the U.S. (i.e., sometimes a remediation plan is deemed necessary to address inadvertent 
returns of drilling fluids to waters of the U.S.). The decision document from the Corps which 
discusses HDD operations and permit triggers has been included in its entirety as Appendix C 
for review. Lastly, the proposed emergency repair project would likely require an emergency 
notification to the CCC due to its location within the CCC originally retained jurisdiction (see 
Appendix D – CCC Emergency Notification Form). 

Based upon the above, Terra Verde recommends the following: 

1. Prepare and submit emergency permit applications/notifications to the CDFW and CCC.
The CCC application would be submitted prior to project implementation and the CDFW
notification would be submitted two weeks after project implementation per CDFW

Terra Verde Technical Memorandum 
(without attachments)

Agenda Item # 9(C)April 25, 2018 - Page 67 of 73 



guidelines. Terra Verde recommends a courtesy email notification to CDFW prior to 
project implementation to ensure they are aware that the OCSD will be working under 
the auspices of the CDFW emergency permit authorization process. 

2. Ensure that the HDD Contractor prepares a Frac‐out Contingency Plan prior to project
implementation. 

3. Conduct pre‐activity surveys for sensitive resources, including special‐status species and
nesting birds. Flag off identified sensitive resources and establish buffer areas, as 
needed. 

4. Conduct worker orientation prior to the start of project activities to educate the crews
on sensitive resources of project area, designated staging areas and access routes, and 
Frac‐out Contingency Plan procedures, etc. 

5. Provide full‐time monitoring of HDD operations to ensure all resources are protected
and to assist in implementation of the Frac‐out Contingency Plan in event of an 
inadvertent release of drilling muds. 

6. Prepare a project completion report for submittal to CDFW and CCC at the completion
of the emergency repair operations. 

As discussed during the April 10, 2018 site visit, there will be further coordination necessary 
with the County of San Luis Obispo and California Department Parks and Recreation (Parks) to 
determine if encroachment permits and/or any other authorizations will be required prior to 
project implementation. These consultations should be completed in association with Task 1 
above. 

If  you  should  have  any  questions  or  require  further  information,  please  contact  me  at 
bdugas@terraverdeweb.com or at 805‐701‐4648. 

Sincerely, 

Brian Dugas 
Principal Biologist 

Attachments:  Attachment A: Figures 
Attachment B: CDFW Emergency Notification 
Attachment C: Corps Decision Document Nationwide Permit 12 
Attachment D: CCC Emergency Permit Application 

Terra Verde Technical Memorandum 
(without attachments)

Agenda Item # 9(C)April 25, 2018 - Page 68 of 73 



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: April 25, 2018 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Paavo Ogren, General Manager  

Subject: Agenda Item #9D- Submittal for approval a Resolution authorizing the General Manager to 
execute intent to serve letters to new customers  

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board approve the attached resolution authorizing the General Manager 
to execute intent to serve letters to new customers. 

 

Discussion 

From time to time, individuals, businesses and other organizations apply for utility service from the 
District.  Existing District ordinances, including 2006-1, require the applicant to pay an application fee 
and other fees associated with obtaining utility services.  In essence, the applicant is required to pay 
100% of the District’s costs.   

When a customer applies for a new service the intent to serve is placed on your Board’s agenda for 
approval with the connection fees established in the letter.  Full payment of the fees is a requirement 
before the final will serve letter can be issued to the customer.  In the past the County would only issue 
a building permit after a customer presented the District’s final will serve letter.  The County Planning 
Department has installed a new tracking system and the issuance of the District’s final will serve has 
been left out the requirements.  Approval of this resolution would allow the General Manager to issue 
the intent to serves at such time that the applicant has met required conditions and paid fees.  The 
resolution also expresses the authority for the General Manager to issue final will-serve letters.  Since 
that authority already exists, the effect of the attached resolution is authorizing the General Manager 
to also issue intent to serve letters. 

 

Agenda Item 9DApril 25, 2018 - Page 69 of 73 



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

 

 

Other Agency Involvement 

Examples of other agencies involved in reviewing and evaluating applications for services include the 
County of San Luis Obispo, Five Cities Fire Authority, the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation 
District and various regulatory agencies. 

Other Financial Considerations 

n/a 

Results 

Approval of the attached resolution will help ensure timely and responsive government which 
promotes well governed communities in a fiscally equitable manner. 

 

Exhibit “A” - Resolution Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Intent to Serve Letters 

Agenda Item 9DApril 25, 2018 - Page 70 of 73 



RESOLUTION NO._________ 
 
 RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO ISSUE ‘INTENT TO SERVE 

LETTERS,’ FINAL ‘WILL SERVE LETTERS’ AND OTHER CONDITIONS ON STREET 
LIGHTING SERVICES 

 
 

The following Resolution is hereby offered and read: 
 
WHEREAS, the Oceano Community Services District (OCSD) provides municipal 

services including, but not limited to, water, sewer and lighting; and 
 
WHEREAS,  proposals to develop properties within the boundaries of OCSD, including 

proposals to modify properties with existing improvements, requires OCSD to review said 
proposals in a manner that is coordinated with the San Luis Obispo County Department of 
Planning and Building, which is the agency responsible for processing and issuing land use 
permits within the boundaries of OCSD; and 

 
WHEREAS, the purpose of review and coordination by OCSD is to help ensure 

compliance with requirements of development previously established and adopted by the 
OCSD Board of Directors and incorporated into OCSD ordinances, resolutions, rules, 
regulations and standards; and 

 
WHEREAS, as part of its review of land use proposals and establishing the specific 

conditions on land use proposals, OCSD issues “intent to serve” and “final” will serve letters for 
water and sewer service, and other conditions on street lighting requirements; and 

 
WHEREAS, many land use proposals, and the necessary conditions that OCSD must 

establish relating to OCSD municipal services, are routine and can be derived from the OCSD 
ordinances, resolutions, rules, regulations and standards; and 

 
WHEREAS, some land use proposals, and the necessary conditions that OCSD must 

establish relating to OCSD municipal services, are routine and cannot be clearly derived from 
the OCSD ordinances, resolutions, rules, regulations and standards 

 
WHEREAS, the OCSD desires to review land use proposals, establish conditions 

relating to OCSD municipal services, and issue intent to serve letters, final will serve letters, 
and to establish other conditions on street lighting services in a timely and efficient manner 
while also adhering to its ordinances, resolutions, rules, regulations and standards; and 

 
ResolutionAgenda Item 9DApril 25, 2018 - Page 71 of 73 



 
WHEREAS, for those land use proposals where the conditions for OCDS municipal 

services can be readily derived from OCSD ordinances, resolutions, rules, regulations and 
standards, it is in the public interest that the OCSD General Manager is authorized to issue 
intent to serve letters, final will-serve letters and other conditions on street lighting services; 
and 
 

WHEREAS, for those land use proposals where the conditions for OCDS municipal 
services cannot be readily derived from OCSD ordinances, resolutions, rules, regulations and 
standards, or when the owner of the land and/or landowner’s agent desires to appeal 
determinations of the General Manager, it is in the public interest that the OCSD Board of 
Directors make final determinations; and 

 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AND ORDERED by the Board of Directors of 

the Oceano Community Services District that: 
 

 
1. The OCSD General Manager is authorized to issue intent to serve letters, final 

will-serve letters and other conditions on street lighting services for those land 
use proposals where the conditions for OCDS municipal services can be readily 
derived from OCSD ordinances, resolutions, rules, regulations and standards. 

 
2. The OCSD Board of Directors shall maintain final authority to issue intent to 

serve letters, final will-serve letters and other conditions on street lighting 
services for those land use proposals where the conditions for OCDS municipal 
services cannot be readily derived from OCSD ordinances, resolutions, rules, 
regulations and standards and when the owner of the land and/or landowner’s 
agent desires to appeal determinations of the General Manager. 

 
  

 
ResolutionAgenda Item 9DApril 25, 2018 - Page 72 of 73 



PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Oceano Community Services 
District on April 25, 2018 by the following vote: 
 

 
AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: 
ABSENT: 
      _______________________________ 
      President, Board of Directors 

of the Oceano Community Services District 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Board Secretary of the 
Oceano Community Services  
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

________________________________ 
Jeffrey A. Minnery, District Counsel

 
ResolutionAgenda Item 9DApril 25, 2018 - Page 73 of 73 


	04252018 Regular Meeting Agenda
	04252018 Agenda Item 8A - 04112018 Minutes
	04252018 Agenda Item 8A - 04112018 Minutes
	Agenda Item 8c- Cash Disbursements

	04252018 Agenda Item 8B - 04192018 Minutes
	04252018 Agenda Item 8C - Cash Disbursements
	Draft Staff Report Cash Disbursements
	04252018 REGULAR CR Check Reconciliation Register - 9366
	PAYROLL SUMMARY 04 14 2018
	Cover Sheet 

	04252018 UTILITY CR Check Reconciliation Register - 9165
	04252018 HEALTH CR Check Reconciliation Register - 9166

	04252018 Agenda Item 8D - Q3 Treasurer Report
	04252018 Agenda Item 9A- Committee Assignmets
	04252018 Agenda Item 9B - FCFA Budget Resolution
	Draft Staff Report - FCFA
	Resolution Directing Approval of the FCFA 2018-19 Budget
	OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	RESOLUTION NO: 2018 - __

	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	03282018 handout 1 of 2
	03282018 handout 2 of 2

	Attachment C
	Attachment D
	Los Osos Special Tax Information
	Cambria Special Tax Information


	04252018 Agenda Item 9C - Resolution for Emergency Waterline Replacement
	04252018 Staff Report Oceano Lagoon
	Resolution with Attachments
	Emergency Resolution PCC 22050 Delegation
	OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
	RESOLUTION NO: 2018 - __

	Exhibit A
	Exhibit B

	04112018 Technical Memo from Terra Verde exc attachments

	04252018 Agenda Item 9D - Intent to Serve



